
 
 
 
 
 
May 25, 2017 
 
 
 
Mr. Branislav Jurista 
Farallon Consulting, LLC 
975 5th Avenue Northwest, Ste 100 
Issaquah, WA 98027 
 

Re:  Response to Comments for the Woodworth & Co. Lakeview Plant 

Site Address: 2800 104th Street South, Tacoma, WA  
Facility/Site No. 1372 
Cleanup Site No. 165 
VCP Project No. SW1012 

 
Dear Mr. Jurista: 
 
The Washington State Department of Ecology (Ecology) received the Response to Ecology 
Comments and Corrections on Farallon Meeting Summary, dated June 30, 2016 (the 2016 
Farallon Response Document) and letter from Woodworth Capital, Inc. (Woodworth), dated July 
4, 2016 (the July 2016 Woodworth Letter), regarding the Woodworth Lakeview Facility, located 
at 2800 104th Court South in Lakeview, Washington (the Site).  The 2016 Farallon Response 
Document provided further Site characterization information and responses to Ecology’s email 
titled Ecology Comments and Corrections on Farallon Meeting Summary, sent March 10, 2016 
(the 2016 Ecology Meeting Summary Email).  The July 2016 Woodworth Letter expressed 
concerns over recent reassignments of Ecology Site Managers and resulting “changing 
interpretations of documents” that had previously been approved by Ecology, including Site 
cleanup standards.  This letter is intended to broadly address the responses presented in the 2016 
Farallon Response Document and to present a proposed path forward for meaningful 
characterization and cleanup of the Site.   
 
Ecology understands and appreciates the concern over costs incurred as a result of environmental 
investigation and cleanup activities performed at the Site.  Ecology shares these same concerns 
and acknowledges the need to avoid costly redundancies and incremental returns on investment.  
It should be noted, however, that determinations of no further action (NFA) are not simply based 
upon completion of an approved remedial action, but is predicated upon final confirmation that 
the affected media no longer exhibits levels of contamination above established cleanup levels 
for that media.   
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We are providing these opinions, comments, and requests under the authority of the Model 
Toxics Control Act (MTCA), Chapter 70.105D RCW.   
 
The following opinions, comments, and requests are based on an analysis of whether the 
remedial action meets the substantive requirements of MTCA, Chapter 70.105D RCW, and its 
implementing regulations contained in Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 173-340 
(collectively “substantive requirements of MTCA”).   
 
Description of the Site 
The comments provided herein apply only to the Site as defined by the nature and extent of 
contamination associated with impacts from petroleum hydrocarbons, trichloroethylene (TCE), 
and related volatile organic compounds (VOCs) to soil and groundwater and from arsenic and 
lead to groundwater beneath the Site. 
 
Please note a parcel of real property can be affected by multiple sites.  At this time, we have no 
information that the parcel(s) associated with this Site are affected by other sites. 
 
Additional background information regarding the Site are provided in Enclosure A. 

Basis for Comments 
These comments are based on the information contained in the following documents: 
 

1. Woodworth. Letter to Ecology regarding the Woodworth Lakeview Facility. July 5, 2016 
(Woodworth 2016); 

2. Farallon Consulting (Farallon). Response to Letter Regarding Ecology Comments and 
Corrections on Farallon Meeting Summary. June 30, 2016 (Farallon 2016); 

3. Ecology. Email to Farallon regarding Ecology Comments and Corrections on Farallon 
Meeting Summary. March 10, 2016 (Ecology 2016);  

4. Ecology. Letter to Farallon regarding Opinion on Proposed Cleanup for the Site. October 
6, 2015 (Ecology 2015); 

5. Ecology. Letter to Ransavage and Lewis regarding July 25, 2015 Compliance Inspection. 
August 25, 2015 (Ecology 2015b). 

6. Farallon. Focused Feasibility Study and Disproportionate Cost Analysis Report. April 14, 
2015 (Farallon 2015);  

7. Farallon. Soil Excavation Cleanup Action Report Completion Report. March 28, 2011 
(Farallon 2011); 
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Contact Information 

Thank you for choosing to clean up the Site under the Voluntary Cleanup Program (VCP).  After 
you have addressed our concerns, you may request another review of your cleanup.  Please do 
not hesitate to request additional services as your cleanup progresses.  We look forward to 
working with you. 
 
For more information about the VCP and the cleanup process, please visit our web site: www. 
ecy.wa.gov/programs/tcp/vcp/vcpmain.htm.  If you have any questions about this opinion, please 
contact me by phone at (360) 407-0276 or e-mail at jeremy.hughes@ecy.wa.gov.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Jeremy Hughes, LG 
SWRO Toxics Cleanup Program 
 
JJH: kb 
 
Enclosures (3): Site Tables and Figures 
 
By Certified Mail: [91 7199 9991 7037 0287 2165] 
 
cc: Jeff Woodworth, President, Woodworth Capital, Inc. 

Nicholas M. Acklam, Ecology  
 Matthew Alexander, Ecology  

Rebecca Lawson, Ecology  












